
 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE - BOARD OF ELECTIONS 

Tuesday, December 5, 2023 

10:30 a.m. 

AGENDA 

 

APPROVAL OF OCTOBER MINUTES 

 

FINANCIAL 

• YTD Budget Report attached 

• Reimbursement received from Cybersecurity grant for penetration testing 

• TIER grant extension application approved 

o See resolution to purchase voting new machines 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

• See October minutes  

• 2023 General Election recap 

• Election inspectors transition to employees – update, resolution 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

• Fire district elections 

• Early Vote by Mail in 2024 

• Election Management System software & server upgrade 

• 2023 Annual Report to NYSBOE 

 

PERSONNEL 

• Commissioner Layman retirement and appointment of Kelly Johnson 

• New Republican Deputy Commissioner selected – see resolution 

• Republican PT Clerk vacancy 

• Republican PT Election Worker vacancy 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

• Authorization to purchase nine (9) voting machines 

• Authorize creation of Election Inspector (Seasonal) positions 

• Appointment of Republican Deputy Commissioner of Elections Board 

ADJOURNMENT 



 

 

 

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE - BOARD OF ELECTIONS 

Tuesday, October 3, 2023 

10:30 a.m. 

MINUTES 

 

ATTENDEES 

Legislators Dennis Mullen, W. Jake Brown, Ronald Ciotoli, and William Standinger. 

Commissioner James Wahls, Deputy Commissioner Kelly Johnson. 

Guests: Peter DeWind (County Attorney), Cathy Haskell (Legislative Clerk). 

 

APPROVAL OF SEPTEMBER MINUTES 

Motion by Legislator Brown, second by Legislator Standinger, all in favor, carried. 

 

FINANCIAL 

YTD Budget Report was presented. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

See August minutes. 

Election Inspector assignment letters for Early Voting and Election Day have been sent, 

165 total inspectors assigned to work. 

Military/UOCAVA absentees sent September 22nd, total of 14. Permanent and Civilian 

absentee ballots mailed September 29th, total of 683. 

BOE Facebook page was launched Sept. 28th, with new VoteTioga Logo. The logo was 

designed by BOE staff. 

The Cease and Desist Order to NY Citizens’ Audit by the Office of Attorney General was 

presented, regarding the individuals associated with that group who have been 

impersonating county election officials around the state and falsely accusing people of 

crimes. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Research on how to pay and train election inspectors continues, especially after new 

legislation mandating that NYSBOE develop a uniform training curriculum for election 

inspectors, and a train-the-trainer program that county BOEs must send staff to attend. 

Commissioners must determine the impact on current staff and whether work hours and 

job descriptions must be adjusted. 



 

Due to the public nature of our building, and especially with the increased number of 

people that come through for Early Voting, an AED was installed in our area of the 

building, and BOE staff received AED training. We will also receive Narcan training in 

October. 

The number of absentee voters at Elderwood nursing facility in Waverly has surpassed 25. 

Per state Election Law, when there are 25 or more eligible absentee voters at an adult 

care facility, BOE staff must personally and bipartisanly deliver the absentee ballots to 

these voters and assist them with voting as needed. Deputy commissioners will visit on 

Oct. 12th to help residents complete voter registration forms and absentee applications, 

and commissioners will visit on Oct. 25th to deliver the ballots. 

Early Voting begins October 28th and runs through November 5th. 

There will be one polling site change as Richford Town Hall has moved. We are sending 

postcard notices to affected voters. 

 

PERSONNEL 

Jean Flynn resigned as Election Worker PT as of 9/11/2023. A backfill request has been 

filed. 

Commissioner Layman’s retirement date set to 12/2/2023. 

Deputy Kelly Johnson to succeed as Republican Commissioner, effective 12/3/2023. 

A new Republican Deputy to begin as early as 12/6/2023. 

 

RESOLUTION 

Resolution J35 was presented to “Amend Resolution No. 246-23 and Resolution No. 247-23 

Regarding Extension of Grant Terms.” 

 

Meeting adjourned. 



Tioga County
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 12/01/2023 14:37
User:             WahlsJ
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      1

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2023 12

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
A        General Fund                          APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

A1450 Elections                           

A1450 412910  Election Fees                     -3,000           0      -3,000      -5,380.57            .00       2,380.57  179.4%
A1450 439060  State Aid-Election                     0     -22,351     -22,351            .00            .00     -22,350.92     .0%*
A1450 510010  Full Time                        190,158           0     190,158     164,630.22            .00      25,527.78   86.6%
A1450 510020  Part Time/Temporar               129,138      -5,000     124,138      66,052.17            .00      58,085.83   53.2%
A1450 510030  Overtime Pay Only                      0       5,000       5,000       5,380.83            .00        -380.83  107.6%*
A1450 520090  Computer                           2,000      -1,552         448          16.27            .00         431.62    3.6%
A1450 520130  Equipment (Not Car                 5,000       1,552       6,552       6,266.73            .00         285.38   95.6%
A1450 530551  Maintenance in Lie                27,223           0      27,223      22,239.00            .00       4,984.00   81.7%
A1450 540010  Advertising                        2,000           0       2,000       1,017.57            .00         982.43   50.9%
A1450 540143  Election Inspector                85,000           0      85,000      44,168.88            .00      40,831.12   52.0%
A1450 540143 EV Election Inspect                15,000           0      15,000      10,350.00            .00       4,650.00   69.0%
A1450 540320  Leased/Service Equ                 5,500           0       5,500       1,527.50            .00       3,972.50   27.8%
A1450 540390  Mileage Expense                      900           0         900         215.45            .00         684.55   23.9%
A1450 540420  Office Supplies                    3,000           0       3,000       1,153.52            .00       1,846.48   38.5%
A1450 540480  Postage                           18,000           0      18,000      10,228.98            .00       7,771.02   56.8%
A1450 540485  Printing/Paper                     1,500           0       1,500         316.88            .00       1,183.12   21.1%
A1450 540490  Election Expense                  40,500      22,070      62,570      23,014.07            .00      39,555.93   36.8%
A1450 540550  Rent                               3,000           0       3,000            .00       1,200.00       1,800.00   40.0%
A1450 540560  Repairs                                0         281         281         280.92            .00            .00  100.0%
A1450 540620  Software Expense                  63,700           0      63,700      58,200.56            .00       5,499.44   91.4%
A1450 540733  Training/All Other                 8,700           0       8,700       5,533.29            .00       3,166.71   63.6%
A1450 581088  State Retirement F                20,662           0      20,662      33,182.31            .00     -12,520.11  160.6%*
A1450 583088  Social Security Fr                17,882           0      17,882      17,537.20            .00         344.96   98.1%
A1450 584088  Workers Compensati                 7,347           0       7,347       9,696.06            .00      -2,349.36  132.0%*
A1450 585088  Unemployment Insur                     0       7,008       7,008       7,008.00            .00            .00  100.0%
A1450 585588  Disability Insuran                   271           0         271         242.73            .00          28.71   89.4%
A1450 586088  Health Insurance F                75,034           0      75,034      81,529.24            .00      -6,495.36  108.7%*
A1450 588988  Eap Fringe                            88           0          88         120.78            .00         -32.98  137.6%*

     TOTAL Elections                           718,603       7,008     725,611     564,528.59       1,200.00     159,882.59   78.0%

     TOTAL General Fund                        718,603       7,008     725,611     564,528.59       1,200.00     159,882.59   78.0%

                           TOTAL REVENUES       -3,000     -22,351     -25,351      -5,380.57            .00     -19,970.35
                           TOTAL EXPENSES      721,603      29,359     750,962     569,909.16       1,200.00     179,852.94

https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=AgXlFMs0mdLfcLLeKL8RsQMw16sqIeNMxm3vat1mTosTh6Fj%2FuNrY9IaQZSmYl9Q
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=cqfhH%2BjsqbsVs4GUxHb4QNPbLer%2BegdBWKTh3BGyi8FLud7mroCB1R1oPfm2t3dS
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=IWfsn2Ndm19pgxUac5oo3vxnoeI77%2FD%2FSag5z%2F8Doo0n7jF7PD6rLuGovUkI3ZwC
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=6qz3n6eHK9fpo1Dw3YdtrHsE%2B8Fr1DZTK%2F8k6UL9LUqTaOd6511HJbqDBNw8gCdv
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=1kpxtRPb4OLzHIDPErnLTxY4yZ37KGgUBrcIr5BjdrEFB4jthMu8lF8vQj4pyFZp
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=x3q2TxQ0TMTxbp1DSrbvdu8RI98J08h3WQXz1u7Mj51QUy6ty4dQ%2F7iUwtb%2BD5HT
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=53yR3istoGlBaSUBd7BVbcFP0dKLpBttCZFOBkjSbAL9pVYpMAFEKVYEqiDWDqdU
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=QNIjSZiABzVSD782Ozw1Ka8tKsrw4z%2FpRsoUF6ZyPKTiHa8MM9EUYl2p0GvcpXYO
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=2GMg5LS9H%2BWQyHpil5YbHBTAVaFFi%2BfmvJtO1xGIUUcnhh6L25kOEInHLgB7hqlR
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=DxXi3OJDRHE7tud5%2FGfwqa5ff93DH2P3gGRjQFuU6vk92qN1alyYtOTv%2FgRYXxzy
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Kj2sfILyICl6SC9zLT%2BhpKpsqGdskbbNsWElFy3kisQtz9xc0OwPl0IpXWdg0UOH
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=AObSFwFmJsYgD7%2B%2FMFfCEE26A9adqWiNk%2BSgT0U3z7auj9i6jv9n7l7DNr9p22cB
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=1xDyzZ677KMDH6T7zXnXyQQHZJoXxZWWgDh5f02m29fNVwslTfnxZru52nT7NfId
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ammggi6WmBYe0h8jppptdtIxkr1D4GUBkf6AsMQ%2F42jKh2suoQAlRCtCqJ%2BK7DEK
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=5rd0p%2B1o3m09uT%2BTCQaBF3OjlEzMegwEbUEP0jDrX97aq3TWryPTkfrDSDpdqtFC
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=uYZAkd08NbupmGI6vbRRpWi%2FOXEuej6Ar%2BjyL5fnvarFEBDXzXTgEbW%2Fw%2FOcHRoq
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=wXq7SnZQgKY2Ef9r4bS6wLMlC2WJYbwOsWcWJTpP8Hk1j%2BZEe92G5qOdIuYiB2xt
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=4p1MEJVaUqQroOhljYg%2BpDGgYZxx843LWxMic0qwdltirIvtk%2BJ6l3TrNMXmXABE
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=KrNf6zsU5HYtvRPVgfvM%2FEXPtXJbzjr0c7Icu3WPhnDaRqYBXkuYcRn%2BQEQTn9FG
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=uYs7yw7G%2BjO5eRRXGl1xfH7pYQ5uCRAlyyJ2eCVEzwqxBhbNO5GX0fsc9kN58ETi
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Wm4vZUT550PB%2FbZTM8CcDEFYe3WEjuIxDr6JCdiBcHX60naxsj7xkCLCKP8CkRJr
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Ex58usNdg%2FSHARIaoROe1PD%2BDKRYA5i8g4IfR1Lw4GnJ611tL2rRqqusmfjTKZFG
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=wl7aX%2BT2SQ7S4r7syguaw8b5Ms4ZZIKmUvOghxTgizwmRJjwWrRQ%2BczI93%2B8huJ3
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=yAAQ1gwYLfp%2FJztoR7sz5pxzKIv49xFUn75VA3r9A04beRexDaw2jeaDmbpaYcMk
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=eI7HXo%2BtltmPfdogmsdsKyb0%2BTs0HJc7BGabtmCHUigb0LziTu4P8bHafozJYEDl
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Aj6dzpa0pLqf8Taq3lSOxNosaMIig%2BcZd5IA78FzFarvcBJ1b4rn4Ahp4ur78hJB
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=G%2FAFhLxQHFSpke0MiEWCc9qXErgeXw4lE7e1UpzLSXeIz%2B2OsvuByokqjZ1B3T01
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=6nv5OQ4iZlQ%2BrDVYBNDzIgkFvopifMZfR9Ea%2FrKtHVw1X7tLpo8JpkWKVBajOdrB


Tioga County
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 12/01/2023 14:37
User:             WahlsJ
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      2

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2023 12

                                              ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
                                               APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

                              GRAND TOTAL      718,603       7,008     725,611     564,528.59       1,200.00     159,882.59   78.0%

                                          ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Wahls, James **                                           



Tioga County
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 12/01/2023 14:38
User:             WahlsJ
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      1

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2023 12

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
H        Capital Fund                          APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

H1450 Elections                           

H1450 430891 CYBER State Aid- CY                     0     -38,067     -38,067     -22,276.40            .00     -15,790.38   58.5%*
H1450 439060  State Aid-Election                     0     -51,282     -51,282            .00            .00     -51,281.65     .0%*
H1450 520300  Voting Machines                    2,500           0       2,500            .00            .00       2,500.00     .0%
H1450 520490  Capital Election E                     0      51,282      51,282            .00            .00      51,281.65     .0%
H1450 520620 CYBER Software Expe                     0      38,067      38,067      22,276.40            .00      15,790.38   58.5%

     TOTAL Elections                             2,500           0       2,500            .00            .00       2,500.00     .0%

     TOTAL Capital Fund                          2,500           0       2,500            .00            .00       2,500.00     .0%

                           TOTAL REVENUES            0     -89,348     -89,348     -22,276.40            .00     -67,072.03
                           TOTAL EXPENSES        2,500      89,348      91,848      22,276.40            .00      69,572.03

https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=lOF6Q%2Fk3tpQtruCR8g83ktnB6%2FJBZBJ3bIXTj4yt70rraOUEqTrdOfQhwNoeiDAY1V9zhGNv%2F5G4LjAgUOsLXg%3D%3D
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Mti5WgMR2yNTY9pmhTZ8wdzBjbC6qGy945%2FV0U8lJ6sPlJw2COu8pAhSSFNokKhz
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=82m6euLwX5ig4Cy%2BIK9c4VEJlB3zq2b394QW2e3chM9SMuxsgwFXmXQl%2FIL7f%2BrN
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=z9QGzfw%2BR5X1dcyZbvwEaWyXry9pQjlJpXp0a9UmlQMYi7ltJYGUhIhJTV7RWkhJ
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=4pclKg0KUCyx1RpK2fmyLivh8C7mumWNo4rjFXJtJNpnbg6T3n7bB06mxvAiTO0xiMPzsT9sBkUJ%2B4xt%2FkKxZg%3D%3D


Tioga County
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 12/01/2023 14:38
User:             WahlsJ
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      2

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2023 12

                                              ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
                                               APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

                              GRAND TOTAL        2,500           0       2,500            .00            .00       2,500.00     .0%

                                          ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Wahls, James **                                           



REFERRED TO:   ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE 

FINANCE/LEGAL COMMITTEE 

      

RESOLUTION NO. -23 AUTHORIZATION TO PURCHASE NINE (9)  

VOTING MACHINES 

 

WHEREAS: The Tioga County Board of Elections currently utilizes eight (8) 

Dominion ImageCast Precinct (ICP) scanners as part of our current fleet of 

voting machines; and  

 

WHEREAS: These ICP scanners are 14 years old and reaching end-of-life, and the 

Board of Elections has deemed it necessary to replace these scanners with the 

new State-approved ICP2 model, and add an additional scanner to our fleet, to 

reduce the risk of equipment failure and facilitate a better voting experience for 

Tioga County voters; and  

 

WHEREAS: The equipment will be purchased through OGS State contract and 

the total expense of the equipment is quoted at $46,765.80; and 

 

WHEREAS: The expense is fully reimbursable to Tioga County under the 

Technology Innovation and Election Resource (TIER) grant, per certified 

Resolution No. 247-23 and 383-23; therefore be it 

 

RESOLVED: That the Tioga County Board of Elections is authorized to expend 

$46,765.80 for nine (9) Dominion ImageCast Precinct 2 scanners, including one 

metal ballot box for the ninth scanner, out of Capital Election Expense fund 

H1450-520490. 

 



REFERRED TO:   ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE   

     PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 

 

RESOLUTION NO. -23 AUTHORIZE CREATION OF  

ELECTION INSPECTOR (SEASONAL) POSITIONS 

BOARD OF ELECTIONS 

 

WHEREAS: Legislative approval is required for the creation of any new positions 

within Tioga County; and 

 

WHEREAS: The IRS is requiring election workers to be reported as employees due 

to new regulations. Previously they were paid with a 1099; and 

 

WHEREAS: It was decided amongst the Board of Elections, Personnel, Treasurer’s 

Office, and the County Attorney that Tioga County will need to create a new 

county job title, Election Inspector (Seasonal); and 

 

WHEREAS: Due to the unknown number of Election Inspector (Seasonal) positions 

that are needed, it is recommended to create 230 with the ability to unfund extra 

positions if needed; therefore be it 

 

RESOLVED: That 230 Election Inspector (Seasonal) positions be created and may 

be filled as needed without a resolution required per person, at a 2024 hourly rate 

of $15.00; and be it further   

            

RESOLVED: That the Board of Election’s 2024 authorized part-time headcount 

shall increase from 10 to 240. 

 

 
 



REFERRED TO: ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -23 APPOINTMENT OF REPUBLICAN
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER OF ELECTIONS BOARD

WHEREAS: Legislative approval is required for any appointment to a
Management/Confidential position within Tioga County; and

WHEREAS: The position of Deputy Commissioner of Elections Board (Republican)
has been vacant since December 2, 2023 due to promotion; and

WHEREAS: The Republican Election Commissioner has selected a candidate to
fill said vacancy; therefore be it

RESOLVED: That James Hoover II shall be appointed as Deputy Commissioner of
Elections (Republican) effective December 18, 2023 at an annual
Management/Confidential salary of $43,091.



REFERRED TO: ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -23 AUTHORIZE 2024 SALARIES/WAGES
(BOARD OF ELECTIONS)

WHEREAS: The salaries for employees of the Board of Elections are set by
resolution; and

WHEREAS: Management Confidential staff and hourly employees have been
authorized a salary increase for 2024; therefore be it

RESOLVED: That the 2024 rates for the Board of Elections staff shall be as follows:

2024 pay:

Commissioners $ 59,327.00/yr.
Deputy Commissioners $ 45,030.00/yr.
Voting Machine Technicians $ 22.82/hr.
Election Clerk $ 18.57/hr.
Election Workers $ 15.00/hr.


